IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 87,783

THOMAS KNIGHT, n/k/a ASKARI ABDULLAH MUHAMMAD

Appellant,

-VS.-

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

BENNETT H. BRUMMER Public Defender Eleventh Judicial Circuit of Florida 1320 N.W. 14th Street Miami, Florida 33125 (305) 545-1958

LOUIS CAMPBELL Assistant Public Defender Florida Bar No. 0833320

Counsel for Appellant

ARGUMENT	Γ		
		I.	
	PRES SMIT CONS THE	TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING THE STATE TO SENT THE HEARSAY TESTIMONY OF DETECTIVE TH, IN VIOLATION OF FLORIDA LAW, THE FLORIDA STITUTION, ARTICLE I, SECTIONS 9, 16, AND 17, AND UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, AMENDMENTS VI, AND XIV	33
	A.	The Introduction of Detective Smith's Hearsay Testimony Regarding the Surveillance Violated the Defendant's Constitutional Right of Confrontation and Undermined the Reliability and Fairness of the Penalty Proceeding	36
	В.	Detective Smith's Hearsay Testimony that Employees of the Paper Bag Company Had Not Observed the Defendant Engage in Bizarre or Unusual Behavior, Violated the Defendant's Right of Confrontation, and his Right to Due Process and a Reliable Resentencing Proceeding	45
		II.	
	PRIN THE PROC	TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING THE STATE'S ICIPAL WITNESS, DETECTIVE SMITH, TO REMAIN IN COURTROOM THROUGHOUT THE RESENTENCING CEEDING, IN VIOLATION OF THE RULE AGAINST NESS SEQUESTRATION, SECTION 90.616, FLORIDA DUTES	46

THE PROSECUTION'S RELIANCE ON THE NONSTATUTORY AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE OF FUTURE DANGER- OUSNESS TAINTED THE VALIDITY OF THE JURY'S RECOMMENDATION AND UNDERMINED THE RELIABILITY OF THE SENTENCING HEARING, IN VIOLATION OF FLORIDA LAW, THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION, ARTICLE I, SECTIONS 9 AND 17, AND THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, AMENDMENTS VIII AND XIV
IV.
THE TRIAL COURT'S REFUSAL TO DETERMINE AND INSTRUCT THE JURY THAT IF SENTENCED TO LIFE, THE SENTENCES WOULD BE CONSECUTIVE, WITH MINIMUM MANDATORY TERMS TOTALLING FIFTY YEARS, PRECLUDED THE JURY FROM CONSIDERING RELEVANT MITIGATING EVIDENCE, UNDERMINED THE RELIABILITY OF THE SENTENCING PROCEEDING, AND DENIED THE DEFENDANT DUE PROCESS, IN VIOLATION OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION, ARTICLE I, SECTIONS 9 AND 17, AND THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, AMENDMENTS VI, VIII AND XIV
A. The Trial Court's Denial of the Motion to Determine in Advance Whether the Sentences Would Be Concurrent or Consecutive Undermined the Reliability of the Sentencing Process by Withholding from the Jury Relevant Mitigating Evidence and Accurate Sentencing Information
B. The Court's Refusal to Determine in Advance Whether the Sentences Would Be Concurrent or Consecutive Violated Mr. Muhammad's Right to Due Process
V.
THE TRIAL COURT'S INSTRUCTION THAT THE DEFENDANT'S ABSENCE AT TRIAL WAS THE RESULT OF HIS MISCONDUCT IN THE COURTROOM, AND THAT THE DAILY DELAYS WERE CAUSED BY THE NEED TO REASSESS

DUE DETE CONS	VILLINGNESS TO BEHAVE, DENIED THE DEFENDANT PROCESS AND A RELIABLE SENTENCING EMINATION, IN VIOLATION OF THE FLORIDA STITUTION, SECTIONS 9 AND 17, AND THE UNITED ES CONSTITUTION, AMENDMENTS VIII AND XIV
	VI.
OF DI THE COMI STAT FLOR SECT	TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING THE TESTIMONY R. MILLER, WHO HAD BEEN APPOINTED SOLELY FOR PURPOSE OF EVALUATING APPELLANT'S PETENCE AND HAD NO OPINION AS TO HIS MENTAL TUS AT THE TIME OF THE CRIME, IN VIOLATION OF JIDA LAW, THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION, ARTICLE I, IONS 9 AND 17 AND THE UNITED STATES STITUTION, AMENDMENTS V, VI, VIII, AND XIV
A.	Use of Dr. Miller's 1996 Competency Examination to Rebut Mental Mitigation Violated Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.211(e)
B.	Use of Dr. Miller's 1996 Competency Examination to Rebut Mental Mitigation Violated Appellant's Fifth Amendment Privilege Against Self-Incrimination 61
C.	Use of Dr. Miller's 1996 Competency Examination to Rebut Mental Mitigation Violated Appellant's Sixth Amendment Right to Counsel
D.	Dr. Miller's Testimony was Irrelevant, Unfairly Prejudicial, and Exceeded the Proper Scope of Rebuttal
	VII.
COUN SAIZ, CONS	TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DENYING DEFENSE USEL'S PEREMPTORY CHALLENGE OF JUROR RIVERO- IN VIOLATION OF FLORIDA LAW, THE FLORIDA STITUTION, ARTICLE I, SECTION 9, AND THE UNITED TES CONSTITUTION AMENDMENT XIV

VIII.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN EXCLUDING JURORS WELDON AND ZARIBAF, AND ALTERNATE JUROR CUNNINGHAM, FROM THE PANEL, IN VIOLATION OF FLORIDA LAW, THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION, ARTICLE I, SECTION 9 AND 16, AND THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, AMENDMENTS VI AND XIV
IX.
THE DEFENDANT WAS DENIED A FUNDAMENTALLY FAIR AND RELIABLE SENTENCING HEARING BY THE PROSECUTOR'S IMPROPER ARGUMENT, COMMENTS, AND INTRODUCTION OF IRRELEVANT AND HIGHLY PREJUDI- CIAL FACTS, IN VIOLATION OF THE FLORIDA CONST- ITUTION, ARTICLE I, SECTION 9 AND 17, AND THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, AMENDMENTS VIII AND XIV
X.
THE TRIAL COURT'S REFUSAL TO INSTRUCT ON THE MERGING OF AGGRAVATORS ESTABLISHED BY A SINGLE ASPECT OF THE OFFENSE UNDERMINED THE RELIABILITY OF THE JURY'S RECOMMENDATION IN VIOLATION OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION, ARTICLE I, SECTIONS 9 AND 17, AND THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, AMENDMENTS VIII AND XIV
XI.
THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN INSTRUCTING THE JURORS ON THE PRIOR-VIOLENT-FELONY AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE, AND IN ALLOWING THE STATE TO PRESENT EVIDENCE AND ARGUMENT REGARDING THE DEFENDANT'S CONVICTION FOR THE SUBSEQUENT MURDER OF OFFICER BURKE, IN VIOLATION OF FLORIDA LAW, THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION, ARTICLE I, SECTION 17, AND THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION,
AMENITAMENTE VIII AND VIV

XII.

A. Instructing on the CCP Aggravating Circumstance
Violated the Defendant's Rights under the Ex Post Facto Clause
B. The CCP Aggravating Circumstance and the Corresponding Standard Instruction are Unconstitutionally Vague
XIII.
THE TRIAL COURT'S INSTRUCTION ON THE HAC AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE DENIED THE DEFENDANT DUE PROCESS OF LAW AND UNDERMINED THE RELIABILITY OF THE JURY'S RECOMMENDATION, IN VIOLATION OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION, ARTICLE I, SECTIONS 9 AND 17, AND THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, AMENDMENTS VIII AND XIV
A. The Standard Jury Instruction on HAC is Unconstitutionally Vague
B. The Standard Jury Instruction on HAC is Inaccurate and Relieves the State of its Burden of Proof
XIV.
THE TRIAL COURT'S REFUSAL TO GIVE THE DEFENSE REQUESTED INSTRUCTION ON THE STATUTORY MENTAL MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES DENIED THE DEFENDANT DUE PROCESS OF LAW AND UNDERMINED THE RELIABILITY OF THE JURY'S RECOMMENDATION, IN VIOLATION OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION, ARTICLE I, SECTIONS 9 AND 17, AND THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, AMENDMENTS VIII AND XIV

THE	
	NDANT TO DEATH IN VIOLATION OF SECTION 921.141,
	IDA STATUTES, THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION,
	CLE I, SECTION 17, AND THE UNITED STATES
CONS	TITUTION, AMENDMENTS VIII AND XIV
A.	The Trial Court Erred in Giving Little Weight to the Nonstatutory Mitigating Circumstances
В.	The Trial Court Erred in Finding the HAC Aggravating Circumstance and the Court's Reliance on an Incident that Never Happened Seriously Undermined the Reliability of the Sentencing
C.	The Trial Court Erred in Rejecting the Extreme Emotional Disturbance and Substantial Impairment Statutory Mitigating Circumstances
D.	The Trial Court Erred in Finding that the Murder was Committed in a Cold, Calculated and Premeditated Manner
E.	The Trial Court Erred in Finding and Giving Great Weight to the "Prior Violent Felony" Aggravating Circumstance
F.	The Trial Court Erred in Finding the Pecuniary Gain Aggravator
G.	The Trial Court Erred in Finding the "Avoid Arrest" Aggravator
Н.	The Trial Court Erred in Separately Finding the Felony Murder Aggravator
	XVI.
FLOR AND	IDA'S DEATH PENALTY STATUTE VIOLATES THE IDA CONSTITUTION, ARTICLE I, SECTIONS 9 AND 17, THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, AMENDMENTS AND XIV. BECAUSE IT IMPROPERLY SHIFTS THE

	BURDEN OF PROOF AND PERSUASION TO THE DEFENSE,	
	FAILS ADEQUATELY TO GUIDE THE JURY'S DISCRETION,	
	AND DOES NOT REQUIRE WRITTEN FINDINGS REGARDING	
	THE SENTENCING FACTORS THEREBY PRECLUDING	
	ADEQUATE APPELLATE REVIEW	94
	A. Burden Shifting	94
	B. Inadequate Guidance and Lack of Written Findings by	
	the Jury	95
	XVII.	
	BECAUSE OF THE THE INORDINATE LENGTH OF TIME	
•	THAT THE DEFENDANT HAS SPENT ON DEATH ROW,	
	ADDING HIS EXECUTION TO THAT PUNISHMENT WOULD	
	CONSTITUTE CRUEL AND UNUSUAL PUNISHMENT IN	
	VIOLATION OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION, ARTICLE I,	
	SECTION 17, THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION,	
	AMENDMENTS VIII AND XIV, AND BINDING NORMS OF	
	INTERNATIONAL LAW	96
CONCLUSIO	ON NO	100
CERTIFICAT	TE OF SERVICE	100

TABLE OF CITATIONS

CASES	PAGE(S)
Arango v. State 411 So. 2d 172 (Fla. 1982)	95
Barnes v. State	
415 So. 2d 1280 (Fla. 2d DCA), review denied, 424 So. 2d 760 (Fla. 1982)	46
Beck v. Alabama 447 U.S. 625 (1980)	57
Bonifay v. State 626 So. 2d 1310 (Fla. 1993)	
Brown v. Kelly 973 F.2d 116 (2d Cir. 1992)	67
Buchanan v. Kentucky 483 U.S. 402 (1987)	63, 65
California v. Brown 479 U.S. 538 (1987)	
Campbell v. State 571 So. 2d 415 (Fla. 1990)	89
Castro v. State 597 So. 2d 259 (Fla. 1992)	73
Chaky v. State 651 So. 2d 1169 (Fla. 1995)	92, 93
Chandler v. State 534 So. 2d 701 (Fla. 1988)	
Cheshire v. State 568 So. 2d 908 (Fla. 1990)	
Clark v. State 613 So. 2d 412 (Fla. 1992)	

Clark v. Tansy 882 P.2d 527 (N.M. 1994)	57
Coker v. Georgia	Λ¢
433 U.S. 584 (1977)	90
Coleman v. Balkcom	
451 U.S. 949 (1981)	97
Collins v. Youngblood	
497 U.S. 37 (1990)	76
Combs v. State	
403 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981)	77
Combs v. State	
525 So. 2d 853 (1988)	96
Downs v. State	
572 So. 2d 895 (Fla. 1990)	53
Drope v. Missouri	
420 U.S. 162 (1975)	62
Elledge v. State	
346 So. 2d 998 (Fla. 1977)	76
Engle v. State	
438 So. 2d 803 (Fla. 1983)	33
Espinosa v. Florida	
505 U.S. 1079 (1992)	95
Estelle v. Smith	
Estelle v. Smith 451 U.S. 454 (1981)	63
Faretta v. California	
422 U.S. 806 (1975)	57
Fino v. Nordine	
646 So. 2d 746 (Fla. 4th DCA1994)	46

Francis v. Franklin 471 U.S. 307 (1985)
Francois v. State 407 So, 2d 885 (Fla. 1981)
Furman v. Georgia 408 U.S. 238 (1972)
Gardner v. Florida 430 U.S. 349 (1976)
Gardner v. State 480 So. 2d 91 (Fla. 1985)
Gibson v. State 474 So. 2d 1183 (Fla. 1985)
Goodman v. West Coast Brace & Limb 580 So. 2d 193 (Fla. 2d DCA 1991)
Green v. Georgia 442 U.S. 95 (1979)
Gregg v. Georgia 428 U.S. 153 (1976)
Hall v. State 614 So. 2d 473 (Fla. 1993)
Hamilton v. State 109 So. 2d 422 (Fla. 3d DCA 1959)
Hardwick v. State 521 So. 2d 1071 (Fla. 1988)
<i>Harris v. New York</i> 401 U.S. 222 (1971)
Hill v. State 549 So. 2d 179 (Fla. 1989)

Hitchcock v. State 578 So. 2d 685 (Fla. 1990, vacated on other grounds, 505 U.S. 125 (1992)
Holland v. State 636 So. 2d 1289 (Fla.), cert. denied, 115 S.Ct. 351 (1994)
Idaho v. Wright 497 U.S. 805 (1990)
In re Medley 134 U.S. 160 (1890)
Jackson v. Dugger 837 F.2d 1469 (11 th Cir.), cert. denied, 486 U.S. 1026 (1088)
Jackson v. State 648 So. 2d 85 (Fla. 1994)
Johnson v. Singletary 612 So. 2d 575 (Fla. 1993)
Johnson v. State 660 So. 2d 637 (Fla. 1995)
Jones v. State 569 So. 2d 1234 (Fla. 1990)
Kastigar v. United States 406 U.S. 441 (1972)
Klocock v. State 589 So. 2d 219 (Fla. 1991)
Knight v. State 338 So. 2d 201 (Fla. 1976)
Knowles v. State 632 So. 2d 62 (Fla. 1993)

Lackey v. Texas 115 S.Ct. 1421 (1995) 98
Lawrence v. State 691 So. 2d 1068 (Fla. 1997)
Leary v. United States 395 U.S. 6 (1969)
Lockhart v. State 655 So. 2d 69 (Fla. 1995)
Lockett v. Ohio 438 U.S. 586 (1978)
Long v. State 620 So. 2d 1268 (Fla. 1992), cert. denied, 114 S.Ct. 104 (1993)
Lynce v. Mathis 117 S.Ct. 891 (1997)
Maryland v. Craig 497 U.S. 836 (1990)
Mattox v. United States 156 U.S. 237 (1895)
<i>Maulden v. State</i> 617 So. 2d 298 (Fla. 1993)
<i>Maxwell v. State</i> 603 So. 2d 490 (Fla. 1992)
Maynard v. Cartwright 486 U.S. 356 (1988)
<i>McKinney v. State</i> 579 So. 2d 80 (Fla. 1991)
McKleskey v. Kemp 481 U.S. 279 (1987)

McKoy v. North Carolina 494 U.S. 433 (1990)
<i>Melbourne v. State</i> 679 So. 2d 759 (Fla. 1996)
Miller v. Florida 482 U.S. 423 (1987)
Miller v. State 373 So. 2d 882 (Fla. 1979)
<i>Mills v. Maryland</i> 486 U.S. 367 (1988)
Mills v. State 476 So. 2d 172 (Fla. 1985)
Mines v. State 390 So. 2d 332 (Fla. 1980), cert. denied, 451 U.S. 916 (1981)
Miranda v. Arizona 384 U.S. 436 (1966)
Missouri v. Holland 252 U.S. 416 (1920)
Morgan v. State 639 So. 2d 6 (Fla. 1994)
Motley v. State 155 Fla. 545, 20 So. 2d 798 (1945)
Mullaney v. Wilbur 421 U.S. 684 (1975)
<i>Neil v. State</i> 457 So. 2d 481 (Fla. 1984)
Nelson v. State 688 So. 2d 971 (Fla. 4 th DCA 1997)

New Jersey v. Portash
440 U.S. 450 (1979)
Ohio v. Roberts
448 U.S. 56 (1980)
O'Neil v. McAninch
115 S.Ct. 992 (1995)
Parker v. Dugger
498 U.S. 308 (1991)
Pate v. Robinson
383 U.S. 375 (1966)
People v. Anderson
493 P.2d 880 (Cal. 1972)
Peterka v. State
640 So. 2d 59 (Fla. 1994)
Postell v. State
398 So. 2d 851 (Fla. 3d DCA), review denied, 411 So. 2d 384 (Fla. 1981)
review demed, 411 30. 20 304 (11d. 1701)
Powell v. Texas 492 U.S. 680 (1989)
492 U.S. 680 (1989)
Pratt & Morgan v. Attorney General of Jamaica
Privy Council Appeal No. 10 of 1993, slip op., reported at 3 W.L.R. 995, 143 N.L.J. 1639, 2 A.C. 1, 4 All E.R. 769
(British Privy Council Nov. 2, 1993) (en banc)
Preston v. State
607 So. 2d 404 (Fla. 1992)
Proffitt v.Florida
428 U.S. 242 (1976)
Provence v. State
337 So. 2d 783 (Fla. 1976)

Purkett v. Elem 115 S.Ct. 1769 (1995)
Rhodes v. State
547 So. 2d 1201 (Fla. 1989)
Rhodes v. State
638 So. 2d 920 (Fla. 1994)
Richardson v. State
604 So. 2d 1107 (Fla. 1992)
Robinson v. State
574 So. 2d 108 (Fla. 1991)
Rogers v. State
511 So. 2d 526 (Fla. 1992)
Ross v. Oklahoma
487 U.S. 81 (1988)
Sandstrom v. Montana
442 U.S. 510 (1979)
Scull v. State
533 So. 2d 1137 (Fla. 1988)
Shell v. Mississippi
498 U.S. 1 (1990)
Siderman de Blake v. Republic of Argentina
965 F.2d 699 (9 th Cir. 1992)
Simmons v. South Carolina
114 S.Ct. 2187 (1994)
Simmons v. State
419 So. 2d 316 (Fla. 1982)
Skipper v. South Carolina
476 U.S. 1 (1986)

Smalley v. State 546 So. 2d 720 (Fla. 1989)
Sochor v. Florida
504 U.S. 527 (1992)
Soering v. United Kingdom 11 E.H.R.R., 161 Eur. Ct. H. R. (Ser. A. (Eur. Ct. Hum. Rts. 1989)
Spencer v. State 645 So. 2d 377 (Fla. 1994)
Standard Jury Instructions in Criminal Cases 22 Fla. L. Weekly S98 (Fla. March 6, 1997)
State v. Barnes 595 So. 2d 22 (Fla. 1992)
State v. Dixon 283 So. 2d 1 (Fla. 1973)
State v. Henderson 789 P.2d 603 (N.M. 1990)
State v. Richmond 886 P.2d 1329 (Ariz. 1994)
Stein v. State 632 So. 2d 1361 (Fla. 1994)
Strausser v. State 682 So. 2d 540 (Fla. 1996)
Suffolk County District Attorney v. Watson 411 N.E.2d 1274 (Mass. 1980)
<i>The Paquete Habana</i> 175 U.S. 677 (1900)
Thompson v. Crawford 479 So. 2d 169 (Fla. 3d DCA 1985)6

Tompkins v. State	
502 So. 2d 415 (Fla. 1986)	33
Turner v. State	
645 So. 2d 444 (Fla. 1994)	52
Turner v. State	
573 So. 2d 657 (Miss. 1990),	
cert. denied, 500 U.S. 1910 (1991)	56
United States v. Inadi	
475 U.S. 387 (1986)	43, 44
Walls v. State	
641 So. 2d 381 (Fla. 1994)	92
Walton v. State	
481 So. 2d 1197 (Fla. 1985)	33
Waterhouse v. State	
596 So. 2d 1008 (Fla. 1992)	35, 44, 53
Weaver v. Graham	
450 U.S. 24 (1981)	77
White v. Illinois	
502 U.S. 346 (1992)	43
Woodson v. North Carolina	
428 U.S. 208 (1976)	36
Zant v. Stephens	
462 U.S. 862 (1983)	48

CONSTITUTIONS, STATUTES, RULES & TREATIES

United States C							
Article l	I, Section 10				 		76
	ment V						
	ment VI						
	ment VIII						
Amenda	ment XIV				 	• • • • •	. 50, 79
Florida Constitu	ution						
	I, Section 9				 		76
	I, Section 16						
Article 1	I, Section 17				 		54
Florida Statutes							
	s 6						59
§ 90.100 8 90 401	3				 		. 64
8 90.40.	5				 		46. 47
	1						
8 90.70	1(2)				 		46
8 90.70.	8				 		66 68
8 921 1	41(1)				 	34	41.45
8 921.1- 8 921 1 <i>a</i>	41(2)(b)				 		94
8 921.14 8 921.14	41(5)(b)		• • • • • • • •		 		. 75. 92
8 921.11 8 921 1 <i>2</i>	41(5)(d)	<i>.</i>			 		73
	41(5)(e)						
8 921.1- 8 921 14	41(5)(f)				 		. 73. 92
8 921 1 ₄	41(5)(h)				 	73	. 78. 84
§ 921.14	41(5)(i)				 		. 77, 91
Florida Rules o	f Criminal Pr	ocedure					
	211(e)					60. 61	. 63. 64
	211(e)(1)						
Rule 3.2	211(e)(2)				 		63
Rule 3.2	210(b)				 		63
Rule 3.2	350				 		. 66. 68
International Co	ovenant on Ci	vil and Poli	tical Right	s	 		. 98, 99
Convention Ag							
or Degr	ading Treatme	ent or Punis	hment		 		99

TREATISES & ARTICLES

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