IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 87,783

THOMAS KNIGHT,

CLE VI NO PORT COURT

Some Deprine Court

Appellant,

VS.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

AN APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA CRIMINAL DIVISION

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

FARIBA N. KOMEILY

Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0375934 Department of Legal Affairs Rivergate Plaza, Suite 950 444 Brickell Avenue Miami, Florida 33131

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

Appellant, nor a review of Toomer's entire testimony, reflects any questioning about "bad things". The premise of this claim is thus non-existent. Moreover, there were no objections on the grounds now stated to the prosecutor having quoted the DSM criteria. This claim is thus unpreserved. Steinhorst, supra, Suggs, supra. Additionally, it should be noted that a preceding defense expert, McClaine, on direct examination, had extensively quoted and relied upon the DSM, concluding that the defendant met the criteria for the antisocial personality. Dr. Toomer, however, had stated the defendant was not anti-social. The prosecutor was thus entitled to contradict or rebut Toomer's opinion with the DSM. Moreover, there was no prejudice in light of Dr. McClaine having done the same thing previously. Finally, the defendant's criminal history had been extensively detailed by the defense witnesses Duval and Fisher. The jury was not misled. This claim too is unpreserved and without merit.

The Appellant's third argument is also unpreserved. Dr. Carbonell, having based her opinions, inter alia, upon the defendant's prison record, testified that virtually all of the defendant's disciplinary reports in prison involved incidents as to shaving and not being called by his name. (T. 2894-6). The prosecutor attempted to correct her by asking about defendant's numerous other disciplinary reports, which Carbonell acknowledged but discounted as being the norm in prison. Id. The prosecutor then asked about a disciplinary report "concerning a law student that was interviewing him" and allowed him to look up her dress. (T. 3896-7). Dr. Carbonell responded, "one should chastise the law student for being so inappropriate." (T. 2897). There were no objections, nor were any of the arguments now presented ever made in the court below. Moreover, there was no mention of any inappropriate conduct by any defense attorney in the State's closing argument. The instant claim is thus unpreserved and within the

scope of rebuttal, and no prejudice has been demonstrated. <u>Suggs</u>, <u>supra</u>. (unobjected to solicitation of testimony as to uncharged prior offenses found procedurally barred); <u>Steinhorst</u>, <u>supra</u>; <u>Coxwell</u>, <u>supra</u>; <u>Wuornos</u>, <u>supra</u>; <u>Valle</u>, <u>supra</u>.

Finally, the Appellant has claimed error as to the prosecutor's closing argument. The Appellant's claim as to a future dangerousness argument has been previously addressed in issue III and relied upon herein. That claim was unpreserved, and, in context, was not a comment about future dangerousness. The claim as to the prosecutor's alleged improper appeal to the sympathies of the jury is also unpreserved, as there was no objection and no motion for mistrial. (T. 3795). Even if improper, such an isolated and unpreserved comment does not constitute fundamental error so as to reverse the penalty phase. Crump v. State, 622 So. 2d 963, 971-2 (Fla. 1993) (Arguments which improperly gained sympathy for the victim, denigrated defense counsel, and asked for a death sentence to send a message to the community, were not fundamental error so as to require reversal of death sentence); Bertolotti, supra, (several improper comments which, inter alia, included an appeal to jury's sympathy based on the victim not having had lawyers to beg for her life, were not deemed to be so egregious as to reverse penalty phase). The Appellant's reliance upon Rhodes v. State, 547 So. 2d 1201, 1205-6, (Fla. 1984) is unwarranted as that case "was riddled with improper comments," all of which were objected to, but the trial judge had overruled all objections. This Court specifically noted, "none of these comments standing alone may have been so egregious as to warrant a mistrial,". Id. In sum, the Appellant's arguments herein are unpreserved and without merit.

CLAIM OF INSTRUCTIONAL ERROR IS UNPRESERVED AND WITHOUT MERIT.

The Appellant argues that the trial court erred in failing to give a doubling instruction with respect to the merger of the kidnaping (felony murder), pecuniary gain, avoid arrest, and HAC aggravators. This argument has not been preserved, and is without merit.

In the court below, the defendant initially argued that the CCP and HAC aggravators were duplicative. (T. 3719-22). The defense then argued that there was "some element of doubling" in kidnaping and avoid arrest, because of "flight"; the defendant was: "fleeing. He is fleeing from lawful arrest. He is fleeing from kidnaping." (T. 3721-2). The defendant had run away after the murders when he saw the police. However, as noted by the trial court, the State's theory of the avoid arrest aggravator was not based upon flight from police; it was based upon "witness elimination." (T. 3722). The Appellant's current claims with respect to merger of kidnaping, pecuniary gain, avoiding arrest and HAC are thus not preserved as there were no such arguments in the court below. Steinhorst, supra; Castro v. State, 597 So. 2d 259, 261 (Fla. 1992); Jones v. State, 652 So. 2d 346, 350-1 (Fla. 1995); Gore v. State, 22 Fla. L. Weekly S471, 473 (Fla. July 17, 1997) ("Gore's argument regarding the doubling instruction was not properly preserved for review. At trial, Gore's argument in favor of the doubling instructionwas that the prior violent felony and under sentence of imprisonment aggravators should be merged. However, on appeal he grounds his argument for the doubling instruction on two different aggravators;").

In any event, the Appellant's argument is without merit. Improper doubling only occurs

where one aggravator necessarily encompasses the conduct subsumed in the other. See <u>Fotopoulos v. State</u>, 608 So. 2d 784, 793 (Fla. 1992), citing <u>Echols v. State</u>, 48 So. 2d 568, 575 (Fla. 1985):

There is no reason why the facts in a given case may not support multiple aggravating factors provided the aggravating factors are themselves separate and distinct and not merely restatements of each other as in a murder committed during a robbery and murder for pecuniary gain, or murder committed to eliminate a witness and murder committed to hinder law enforcement. *Squires v. State*, 450 So. 2d 208 (Fla.), cert. denied, 469 U.S. 892, 105 S.Ct. 268, 83 L.Ed.2d 204 (1984); *Combs v. State*, 403 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981), cert. denied, 456 U.S. 984, 102 S.Ct. 2258, 72 L.Ed.2d 862 (1982).

See also, Trepal v. State, 621 So. 2d 1361, 1367 (Fla. 1993) (same); Toole v. State, 479 So. 2d 731, 733 (Fla. 1985) (same).

This Court has "consistently rejected" the argument that pecuniary gain and committed-during-the-course-ofa kidnaping are duplicative. Hartley v. State, 686 So. 2d 1316, 1323 (Fla. 1996), citing Preston v. State, 607 So. 2d 404 (Fla. 1992), Bryan v. State, 533 So. 2d 744 (Fla. 1988), Routly v. State, 440 So. 2d 1257 (Fla. 1983). Moreover, as noted by the trial judge, even in the absence of any objection, the State had waived reliance upon robbery as a separate felony so as to preserve the pecuniary gain aggravator. (T. 3720, 3702-3; 3714). Finding pecuniary gain in aggravation is not error when more than one felony, including robbery, has occurred. Monlyn v. State, 22 Fla. L. Weekly S631 (Fla. Oct. 9, 1997); see also Bates v. State, 465 So. 2d 490, 492 (Fla. 1985) (same), Smith v. State, 424 So. 2d 726 (Fla. 1982) (same). Likewise, the felony murder, HAC and avoid arrest aggravators are not restatements of each other. Felony murder concerns the actions of the defendant in committing murder during the course of a felony. HAC concerns the victims' state of mind - their suffering and emotional strain. The

avoid arrest aggravator concerns the defendant's desire to avoid detection. See, e.g., Hartley, supra (separate findings of during kidnaping and avoid arrest aggravators proper); Smith, supra (separate findings of kidnaping and HAC proper). Finally, the State would note that the trial judge expressly stated that, "It is not enough to weigh the number of aggravators against the number of mitigators, the process is more qualitative than quantitative. The court must and does look to the nature and quality of the aggravators and the mitigators which it has found to exist. This Court finds that the aggravating circumstances in this case far outweigh the mitigating circumstances." (SR. 38). Thus, no prejudice has been demonstrated. In sum, the instant claim is unpreserved and without merit.

XI.

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN INSTRUCTING THE JURORS ON THE PRIOR VIOLENT FELONY AGGRAVATOR.

The Appellant argues that the trial court erroneously allowed the prosecution to present evidence of the Burke murder, and thus should not have instructed the jury on the prior violent felony aggravator, because that murder occurred after the crimes herein. The defendant, however, was convicted of the Burke murder prior to the sentencing herein. As such, the Appellant's argument has been repeatedly rejected by this Court. See, Elledge v. State, 346 So. 2d 998, 1001 (Fla. 1977) (application of the prior violent felony aggravator for subsequent convictions obtained before sentencing is proper - the purpose of sentencing is to engage in a character analysis of the defendant); Lucas v. State, 376 So. 2d 1149 (Fla. 1979); Dougherty v. State, 417 So. 2d 1067, 1069 (Fla. 1982); Brown v. State, 473 So. 2d 1260, 1266 (Fla. 1985), Castro v. State, 644 So. 2d 987, 991, n.3 (Fla. 1994). Moreover, the State would note that the

The trial judge specifically stated, "[t]he defendant argues that because the murder of Officer Burke occurred subsequent to the murders of Sydney and Lillian Gans it cannot be considered for purposes of this aggravator... even if the defense's strained reading of Elledge is correct, the court would nevertheless give this aggravator great weight because of the contemporaneous murder of Sydney and/or Lillian Gans". (SR. 3, n. 5). The instant claim is without merit.

XII.

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN INSTRUCTING THE JURORS ON THE CCP AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE.

The Appellant argues that: a) the application of CCP aggravating factor herein constitutes an ex post facto violation of the law; b) the CCP aggravating circumstance itself is unconstitutionally vague; and, c) the jury instructions herein, which were in accordance with <u>Jackson v. State</u>, 648 So. 2d 85, 89, n.8 (Fla. 1994), did not properly define the "cold" element and were thus unconstitutional. These arguments are without merit and unpreserved.

First, this Court has repeatedly held that the application of the CCP factor to murders which occurred prior to its adoption is proper, and does not constitute any ex post facto violation. See Combs v. State, 403 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981); Justus v. State, 438 So. 2d 358 (Fla. 1983), Stano v. State, 473 So. 2d 1282 (Fla. 1985); Sireci v. State, 587 So. 2d 450, 454 (Fla. 1991); Hall v. State, 614 So. 2d 473, 478 (Fla. 1993).

This Court has also repeatedly rejected the Appellant's argument that the CCP aggravating circumstance is itself vague. <u>Jackson</u>, 648 So. 2d at 87 (Fla. 1994); <u>Walls v. State</u>, 641 So. 2d 381, 387 (Fla. 1994); Fotopoulos v. State, 608 So. 2d 784, 794 (Fla. 1992); <u>Klocock</u>

v. State, 589 So. 2d 217, 222 (Fla. 1991); Sec also, Arave v. Creech, 507 U.S. 436 (1993).

Finally, the claim with respect to the jury instructions on this factor is not preserved. Initially, at the charge conference below, the defendant objected to the CCP instruction on the grounds that it was "overly vague", even though the language of the instruction had not yet been proposed. (T. 3718-20). Subsequently, the court provided the instruction approved in <u>Jackson</u>, supra, at which point defense counsel objected on the grounds that, "[t]here must be something wrong with it". (T. 3756). The arguments now raised on appeal were not presented below, nor were any additional instructions requested. Id. The instructional error has thus not been preserved. Hartley, supra. In any event the jury was instructed in accordance with Jackson, and the "cold" element was defined as, "the murder was the product of calm and cool reflection". (T. 3919). There was thus no error. Walker v. State, 22 Fla.L. Weekly at S543 (the CCP instruction in Jackson, supra, is constitutional). Finally, any error is harmless beyond a reasonable doubt, as the trial court specifically noted that, "even in the absence of this [CCP] aggravating circumstance, the court's analysis and conclusions herein would not change." (SR. 11, n.9).

XIII.

THE TRIAL COURT'S INSTRUCTION ON THE HAC AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE WAS PROPER.

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